



KORESPONDENSI IRANIAN NURSING AND MIDWIFERY JOURNAL

1. Submitted to the journal "Iranian Nursing and Midwifery Journal" (23-Oct-2021)
2. First revision (2-Nov-2021)
3. Second revision (22 Feb 2022)
4. Third revision (17 March 2022)
5. Fourth revision (27 June 2022)
6. Fifth revision (24 August 2022)
7. Sixth revision (14 May 2023)
8. Seventh revision (10 July 2023)
9. Paper accepted for publication (10-August-2023)
10. Manuscript published (January-February 2024)

1. Submitted to the journal "Iranian Nursing and Midwifery Journal" (23-Oct-2021)

 **Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research** <editor@ijnmrjournal.net> Sab, 23 Okt 2021, 21.46 ☆ ↶ ⋮
kepada saya ▾

 **Terjemahkan ke Indonesia** ✕

Dear Dr Dr. Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your manuscript entitled "Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method" for consideration for publication. The reference number for this manuscript is "ijnmr_391_21". Kindly quote this in future correspondences related to this manuscript.

The manuscript is being reviewed for possible publication with the understanding that it is being submitted to ONE journal at a time and has NOT been published, simultaneously submitted, or already accepted for publication elsewhere either as a whole or in a part.

Online submission of this article implies that the corresponding author has written consent from all the contributors to act as the corresponding author.

The co-authors are requested to send their agreement response on the **Digital Copyright** sent via a link to their associated emails, within 1 week of submission. The status can be viewed in the 'Manuscript Information page' from the submitting author's area. The decision about the manuscript will be conveyed only on receipt of the agreement on copyright form received from all contributors.

High-resolution images are required at the time of acceptance, you should be notified separately for the same if images uploaded by you are not of printable quality.

The Editors will review the submitted manuscript initially. If found suitable, it will follow a double-blinded peer review. We aim to finish this review process within a short time frame, at the end of which a decision on the suitability or otherwise of the manuscript will be conveyed to you via this system.

During this process, you are free to check the progress of the manuscript through various phases from our online manuscript processing site <https://review.iow.medknow.com/ijnmr>.

We thank you for submitting your valuable work to the Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

Yours sincerely,

Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

2. First Revision (2 Nov 2023)

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya ▾

Sab, 23 Okt 2021, 21:46 ☆ ↶ ⋮

🗨️ **Terjemahkan ke Indonesia** ✕

Dear Dr Dr. Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your manuscript entitled "Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method" for consideration for publication. The reference number for this manuscript is "ijnmr_391_21". Kindly quote this in future correspondences related to this manuscript.

The manuscript is being reviewed for possible publication with the understanding that it is being submitted to ONE journal at a time and has NOT been published, simultaneously submitted, or already accepted for publication elsewhere either as a whole or in a part.

Online submission of this article implies that the corresponding author has written consent from all the contributors to act as the corresponding author.

The co-authors are requested to send their agreement response on the **Digital Copyright** sent via a link to their associated emails, within 1 week of submission. The status can be viewed in the 'Manuscript Information page' from the submitting author's area. The decision about the manuscript will be conveyed only on receipt of the agreement on copyright form received from all contributors.

High-resolution images are required at the time of acceptance, you should be notified separately for the same if images uploaded by you are not of printable quality.

The Editors will review the submitted manuscript initially. If found suitable, it will follow a double-blinded peer review. We aim to finish this review process within a short time frame, at the end of which a decision on the suitability or otherwise of the manuscript will be conveyed to you via this system.

During this process, you are free to check the progress of the manuscript through various phases from our online manuscript processing site <https://review.jow.medknow.com/ijnmr>.

We thank you for submitting your valuable work to the Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

Yours sincerely,
Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal ➤ ✕ 🖨️ 📄

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya ▾

Jum, 12 Nov 2021, 00:12 ☆ ↶ ⋮

🗨️ **Terjemahkan ke Indonesia** ✕

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,
The Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

3. Second Revision (22 February 2022)

Manuscript for revision: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research -editor@ijnmrjournal.net-
kepada saya

Sel, 22 Feb 2022, 16:14

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dear Dr Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript ijnmr_391_21 entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method, please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.jow.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,
Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijnmr_391_21

Eksternal Kotak Masuk

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research -editor@ijnmrjournal.net-
kepada saya

Sen, 7 Mar 2022, 11:34

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,
The Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

4. Third revision (17 March 2022)

Manuscript for revision: [ijnmr_391_21](#) Eksternal Kotak Masuk x



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya ▾

Kam, 17 Mar 2022, 13:15 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia X

Dear Dr. Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript [ijnmr_391_21](#) entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method, please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.iow.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: [ijnmr_391_21](#)



Eksternal Kotak Masuk x



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya ▾

Kam, 17 Mar 2022, 14:44 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia X

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled [ARTICLE_TITLE]. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

The Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

5. Fourth Revision 27 June 2022

Manuscript for revision: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya

Sen, 27 Jun 2022, 12:40

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dear Dr Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript ijnmr_391_21 entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method , please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.iow.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,
Editorial Team

Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya

Sel, 28 Jun 2022, 23:52

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,
The Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

6. Fifth revision (24 August 2022)

Manuscript for revision: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk x



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>

Rab, 24 Agu 2022, 11:16 ☆ ↶ ⋮

kepada saya ▼

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia ×

Dear Dr Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript ijnmr_391_21 entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method, please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.jow.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijnmr_391_21

Eksternal Kotak Masuk x



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>

Kam, 25 Agu 2022, 09:16 ☆ ↶ ⋮

kepada saya ▼

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia ×

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

The Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

7. Sixth revision (14 May 2023)

ijnmr Manuscript for revision: ijmnr_391_21 Eksternal > Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net> kepada saya ▾ Min, 14 Mei 2023, 15.02 ☆ ↶ ⋮

🗣 Terjemahkan ke Indonesia x

Dear Dr Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript ijmnr_391_21 entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method , please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.iow.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

ijnmr Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijmnr_391_21 Eksternal > Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net> kepada saya ▾ Rab, 17 Mei 2023, 21.54 ☆ ↶ ⋮

🗣 Terjemahkan ke Indonesia x

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

The Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

8. Seventh revision (10 July 2023)

ijnmr Manuscript for revision: ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya

Sen, 10 Jul 2023, 13:48 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dear Dr. Haryanto,

With reference to your manuscript ijnmr_391_21 entitled Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method, please review the comments of the referees from our site <https://review.iqjw.medknow.com/ijnmr>. The manuscript would be reconsidered after requisite modifications as per the comments and instructions provided by the journal.

If you wish to continue with the publication process, kindly make the changes according to the comments and upload the revised manuscript along with clarifications for all the comments clearly indicating the areas where the changes have been made.

Do check the FAQ regarding replying to the comments and uploading a file. The template of point-by-point comments files for the reviewers, is available in your dashboard under the 'Downloads' menu option.

The journal allows two weeks for the revision of the manuscript. If we do not hear from you within this period, we will consider it as your decision to withdraw your article from publication. Please also note that the submission of the revised article does not guarantee its final acceptance by the journal.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

ijnmr Manuscript Revision Completed Acknowledgement letter: ijnmr_391_21

Eksternal Kotak Masuk



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya

Sab, 15 Jul 2023, 15:36 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia

Dr Haryanto Haryanto,

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research has received your revised manuscript entitled '[ARTICLE_TITLE]'. The manuscript will be re-evaluated by concerned referees for the final decision regarding its suitability for publication. We will get back to you within four weeks.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

The Editorial Team

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

9. Paper accepted for publication (10-August-2023)

Author-side fee of your manuscript:ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal > Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net> kepada saya ▾
Kam, 10 Agu 2023, 11:44 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia x

Dear Dr Haryanto,

We are pleased to inform that your manuscript "Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method " is now acceptable after clearing the dues for publication of the manuscript. The details of the same can be found on the journal website under ?Instructions to the Authors? page.

The payment can be done using the following link:
<https://prspayment.medknow.com/ijnmr/index?pgCaller=UlniPrr>

The following options are available for payment:

- Pay online
- Cheque payment
- Wire transfer

Once the payment is received at our end, the manuscript would be processed further and you would receive an edited version of article in about 2-3 weeks from now for a final check and correction.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

- With warm personal regards,

Yours sincerely,
Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

ijnmr Manuscript for Final Proof : ijnmr_391_21 Eksternal > Kotak Masuk x

Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net> kepada saya ▾
Jum, 25 Agu 2023, 12:02 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia x

Dear Dr Haryanto,

An edited and formatted version of your manuscript ijnmr_391_21 entitled "Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method " which is scheduled for publication in a forthcoming issue of Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research, has been uploaded on our site: <https://review.jow.medknow.com/ijnmr>.

You are requested to check the same and upload corrected file within 5 days, if there are no changes click "No change" on the site.

If you have any difficulty in downloading or uploading the proofs, please write to Tech Support team at wkhlromedknow_techsupport@wollersklawer.com.

In case we do not hear from you within the stipulated time, we may proceed with publication of the article as it is or postpone the publication to the next issue.

We value your support to our journal and look forward for your valuable contribution in future.

Thanking you,
Journal Editor

ijnmr Manuscript for Final Proof Uploaded: ijmnr_391_21 Eksternal Kotak Masuk x



Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research <editor@ijnmrjournal.net>
kepada saya ▾

Jum, 25 Agu 2023, 14:54 ☆ ↶ ⋮

Terjemahkan ke Indonesia x

Dear Dr Haryanto

Thank you for completing proofing Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research ijmnr_391_21 Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method through the manuscript management site before publication of the manuscript.

We shall get back to you soon for any further corrections.

Please note that the journal reserves the right to make changes in the language, grammar, presentation, etc. to suit the journal's requirements.

We thank you for submitting your valuable research work to Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research.

With warm personal regards,

Yours sincerely,
The Editorial Team
Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research

Lampiran Revisi dan Koreksi

Dear author(s)

After greeting

Please revise the manuscript according to reviewers' comments as the followings using the track change system. If you do not agree with the reviewer's comment, please mention that in the comment box. Do not remove the comments and track changes in the comment file and upload it as the comment file in the system. Then, accept the track changes and remove omments and upload it as the final revised article file.

Please upload the files of the article according to the following format:Word 97-2003

You should use the track change system in your comment file when you answer the reviews comments:for example as the followings

This **cross-sectional**, one-group, pre-post-teaching study was carried out on 60 first year nursing students from a **professional** teaching institute in **Maharashtra**. A non-probability convenience sampling technique was used for this study. Before initiating the study, students were explained about the study's procedures and objectives, and then consent was taken from all the participants. Those who were not willing to participate were **exempted**.

With best regards

Editorial team

Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method

Abstract

Background: Risk factors of recurrence have not been much elucidated. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors involved in the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers. **Materials and methods:** This study was divided into two phases, firstly is, the development of a category used to **investigate** the risk factors of recurrent diabetic foot ulcers by experts. Secondly phase is, the development of the recurrent items risk factors using the Delphi method. Finally, all the risk factor variables were clinically tested for inter-rater reliability agreement. **Results:** There were thirteen list risk factors for recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Mean authority coefficient was 0.71. Positive coefficients were 100% and 78% respectively. Kendall coordination coefficient was statistically significant (χ^2 test, $P < 0.01$), and inter-rater reliability agreement was perfect (1.00). **Conclusions:** This study demonstrated that there were several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future.

Commented [p1]: The name of the study is incorrect, please correct it. A quasi-experimental or interventional study should be provided

Commented [p2]: Mention type of study

Deleted: cross-sectional,

Commented [p3]: Please describe how determine sample size

Commented [p4]: Mention place of study

Commented [p5]: Name the country and year of study

Commented [p6]: Determine the sample size and mention the criteria for entering and leaving the samples
Criteria

Deleted: exempted

Commented [a7]: The type of study should be given

Commented [a8]: Sample size - year - place - be mentioned

Keywords: *Diabetic foot, recurrence, risk factors*

Introduction

According to the International Diabetes Federation, the prevalence of diabetes patients in Indonesia would rise from 10.3 million in 2017 to 10.7 million by 2045.^[1] This report ranks Indonesia as the 6th globally, indicating a steady increase in diabetes patients. Furthermore, diabetic foot ulcers are commonly observed among diabetes patients, with varying prevalence in different countries.^[2] In Indonesia, this disease is known to be predominant in 7.3-24% of individuals.^[3] According to a study, these individuals have a 10-20 times risk of amputation compared to non-diabetics,^[4] with an incidence of 25% in Indonesia.^[5]

This disease has the risk of recurring or developing a new ulcer and also serious implications for QOL, hence, its prevention is necessary. Furthermore, recurrence can occur at the same location or a new site. Clarifying the risk factors associated with this disease is essential to inhibit a new development. These risk factors for the onset of

diabetic foot ulcers have been clarified,^[6] however, the determinants for its recurrence are yet to be elucidated. Thus, it is very important to be known and understood, which can ultimately prevent complication. In addition, the development of risk factors including patient is still little. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors associated with recurrence.

Materials and Methods

Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020. The Delphi method was used in this study, with the inclusion of experts and patients as participants. Experts with more than 10 years experience in a hospital or clinic, a bachelor's or higher degree, and wound training or certificate were included. Subsequently, the patients with diabetic foot ulcers had to be ≥ 21 years of age, had recurrence (the same or another location), and received a diagnosis of type 2 DM according to the American Diabetes Association 2013 guidelines. This diagnosis consists of glycated haemoglobin $\geq 6.5\%$ and fasting blood glucose ≥ 126 mg/dl (7.0 mmol/l) or 2-hour plasma glucose ≥ 200 mg/dl (11.1 mmol/l) during an oral glucose tolerance test.^[7] Patients who did not fulfill these criteria were not permitted to participate in the study. Also, informed consent was obtained from the participants and their family members. In the first phase, the questionnaire-based literature review and reference were developed using the google form application to obtain information from experts about recurrence risk factors. These questionnaires were sent by email and contained: 1) Instructions of the research background, time returned, contact information, and acknowledgment, and 2) The suggestion from experts about "risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers". Moreover, this phase took place between February 15 and March 25, 2020. Based on input from experts, the questionnaires in

the second phase were also developed through the google form application. These experts were obtained using previously identified variables to collect risk factors associated with recurrence. Furthermore, this instrument was structured similarly to phase one, where the risk factors' evaluation form on diabetic foot ulcer recurrence was the only difference, with a score ranging from 1-4 (1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, 4=strongly agree). All questionnaires were sent via email and between August 31 and September 28, 2020. Subsequently, two patients were used as raters to investigate the reliability agreement in a clinical setting. The questionnaires from the variable risk factors of recurrence in the second phase yielded a mean authority coefficient of 0.71. These variables included: 1) feet check, 2) knowledge, 3) diet pattern, 4) activity pattern, 5) foot care, 6) DM duration, 7) blood sugar value, 8) neuropathy status, 9) monofilament test check, 10) ankle-brachial pressure index examination, 11) ultrasonography assessment, 12) skin temperature, and 13) previous amputation. The questionnaire scoring included: 1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, and 4=strongly agree. Moreover, data analysis was conducted with the IBM SPSS software (version 26.0., IBM Corp., Armonk, NY, USA). Each item was described using descriptive statistics, such as mean and standard deviation, while the Delphi method's reliability and validity were examined using expert opinion consensus and calculation of the positive predicative value. The authority coefficients (Cr) were determined by two factors, namely the familiarity with the field (Cs) and criteria (Ca). Consequently, Cs used a value between 0.0-0.9^[8] to determine the five degrees of familiarity, namely very, more, generally, less, and not familiar.^[9] The terms "practical experience (0.5, 0.4, and 0.3)," "theoretical analysis (0.3, 0.2 and 0.1)," "domestic and foreign references" (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) and "subjective judgement (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) were used to divide Ca into more, medium and less. In addition, the degree of expert

authority was expressed by $Cr:Cr = (Ca + Cs) / 2$ while coordination was altered based on the variable and coordination coefficients.^[8] The Kendall's concordance coefficient was also used to reflect the coordination level of experts' opinion with a value between 0 and 1, where a higher denomination indicates a better coordination. Furthermore, Cohen's Kappa was used to analyse the patient's inter-rater reliability agreement. The level of significance was set at $p < 0.05$.

Ethical considerations

This study was approved by the Ethics Review Committee of STIK Muhammadiyah Pontianak, West Kalimantan Province (Ethical Approval Number: 62/II.I.AU/KET.ETIK/II/2020, and Date: February 2nd, 2020). Also, participation was voluntary, anonymous, and confidential. All participants received the consent document through the google form application and were requested to respond with a fill and return, indicating their readiness to participate in the study.

Results

In this study, the mean age of experts and total working time was 39.4 ± 1.4 and 10.9 ± 1.6 years, respectively, with five having worked for >10 years. Furthermore, among these experts one had a Ph.D. in medical surgery, three had a doctorate, two had a masters, and three possessed a bachelor's degree. Five of these individuals were from the wound clinic in West Kalimantan, two from the Middle Java's wound clinic, and one each from the wound clinics in Jakarta, Aceh, West Sulawesi and, East Kalimantan. The mean working time and age of the second Delphi experts were 11.2 ± 1.7 and 39.2 ± 1.5 years, respectively. Also, one expert had a surgeon's medical doctorate, three had a doctorate, while two and five had a master's and bachelor's

degree. The positive coefficient was 100% (14 experts) in the first phase and 78% in the second. Table 1 shows that the mean authority coefficient in the second phase was 0.71 while Table 2 illustrates the mean variable coefficient was 0.41. Subsequently, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was 0.177 ($X^2=25.359$, $df=13$, $p=0.02$) with a perfect inter-rater reliability agreement of 1.00.

Discussion

This is the first study that aims to investigate the risk factors associated with recurrence using expert's opinion and their experience. Moreover, recurrence patients were used as participants, with different variables between the first and second phases, as indicated by the experts based on their experiences. The variables were also consistent with the patient's opinions. Experts with a bachelor's or higher degree and >10 years working experience in a hospital or clinic were questioned. These individuals were familiar with the study content and had in-depth knowledge of diabetic foot ulcers. The representation of experts was acceptable and the participants included diabetes patients.

Reliability

First, positive coefficients indicated that experts were interested and optimistic about the study, with a high positive response rate of 60% or above.^[10] Second, the literature demonstrated that these individuals could be considered of high authority if a coefficient > 0.7 was obtained. Third, the variable coefficient mean had a high concentration of expert suggestions. These retained literature suggestion items should have a score >3.5. (11) Finally, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was consistent, hence choosing appropriate experts was the key to a successful Delphi method.^[11]

Recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors

Our study demonstrated that there some recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

Neuropathy status, blood sugar and previous amputation were risk factor of recurrent diabetic foot ulcer. Thus, similarly with previous study.^{[6],[12]} A previous study reported that the duration of diabetes increased with the risk of diabetic foot ulcer recurrence.^[6] Education about pre-ulcerative signs and foot care play an important role in the prevention of diabetic foot ulcers.^[13] Screening such as monofilament test ABPI and ultrasound are important to early detection peripheral arterial ischemia in diabetic foot ulcer.^[13] Checking skin temperature, which is a feasible procedure, aids the prevention of recurrence.^[14] The last variables are activity and dietary pattern. The American Diabetes Association recommended physical activity and management of food on diabetes to prevent complication particularly diabetic foot ulcer.^[15]

Generally, all variables were consistent with previous studies. hence, they can be used to investigate risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers by health care professional (clinicians, nurses and others). However, the current study has limitation. Participant in inter-rater reliability agreement test was relatively small. Thus, generalizability may be limited.

Implication for clinical settings

The recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers was related to several risk factors, which could be prevented by involving the patients and their families. Consequently, the patient's quality of life is improved.

Conclusion

This study demonstrated that there are several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future that will improve quality of nursing of diabetic foot ulcer patients.

Commented [a9]: Conclusion Revision in three separate paragraphs Dedicate the first paragraph to a summary of the findings and apply the second paragraph to the results and suggest the third paragraph for further research in this field.

References

1. Federation International Diabetes. IDF Diabetes Atlas. Ninth. 2019.
2. Zhang P, Lu J, Jing Y, et al. Global epidemiology of diabetic foot ulceration: a systematic review and meta-analysis†. *Ann Med*. 2017 Feb 17;49(2):106–16.
3. Soewondo P, Ferrario A, Tahapary D. Challenges in diabetes management in Indonesia: a literature review. *Global Health*. 2013;9(1):63.
4. Moxey PW, Gogalniceanu P, Hinchliffe RJ, Loftus IM, Jones KJ, Thompson MM, et al. Lower extremity amputations - a review of global variability in incidence. *Diabet Med*. 2011;28(10):1144–53.
5. Aru W. Sudoyo. dkk. *Buku Ajar Ilmu Penyakit Dalam Jilid III Edisi VI. Ilmu Penyakit Dalam*. 2014.
6. Khalifa WA. Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: a prospective 2-years fol62low- up study in Egypt . *Foot*. 2017;
7. Goyal A, Gupta Y, Singla R, Kalra S, Tandon N. American Diabetes Association “ Standards of Medical Care — 2020 for Gestational Diabetes

Commented [a10]: Bring a new reference 2022

Mellitus ”: A Critical Appraisal. *Diabetes Ther.* 2020;11(8):1639–44.

8. Liu Y, Liu HP. Establishing nursing adverse events' reporting content of hospital: Using the Delphi method. *Front Nurs.* 2021;7(4):337–44.
9. Geng Y, Zhao L, Wang Y, Jiang Y, Meng K, Zheng D. Competency model for dentists in China: Results of a Delphi study. *PLoS One.* 2018;13(3).
10. Fincham JE. Response rates and responsiveness for surveys, standards, and the Journal. *Am J Pharm Educ.* 2008;72(2):43.
11. Medicine C on Q of HC in AI of. *Crossing the Quality Chasm A New Health System for the 21st Century.* Washington, DC: The National Academies Press; 2001. 360 pages.
12. Yazdanpanah L, Shahbazian H, Nazari I, Arti HR, Ahmadi F, Mohammadianinejad SE, et al. Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer : A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study) — Two-Year Follow-Up Study. *Int J Endocrinol.* 2018;2018:1–9.
13. Nicolaas C, Schaper, Jaap J. van Netten, Jan Apelqvist, Sicco A. Bus, Robert J. Hinchliffe BAL. *IWGDF Guidelines on the prevention and management of diabetic foot disease IWGDF Guidelines.* 2019.
14. Skafjeld A, Iversen MM, Holme I, Ribu L, Hvaal K, Kilhovd BK. A pilot study testing the feasibility of skin temperature monitoring to reduce recurrent foot ulcers in patients with diabetes – a randomized controlled trial. *BMC Endocr Disord.* 2015;15(55):1–7.
15. Colberg SR, Sigal RJ, Yardley JE, Riddell MC, Dunstan DW, Dempsey PC, et al. *Physical Activity / Exercise and Diabetes : A Position Statement of the American Diabetes Association.* *Diabetes Care.* 2016;39(November):2065–79.

Table 1: Coefficient expert of authority of variables

Variables	Ca	Cs	Cr
Check feet every day	0.58	0.87	0.72
Check using monofilament test	0.57	0.85	0.71
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	0.60	0.85	0.72
Check using ultrasonography	0.55	0.85	0.70
Amputation previous	0.62	0.82	0.72
Knowledge wound healing	0.62	0.85	0.73
Diet pattern	0.61	0.81	0.71
Activity pattern	0.61	0.77	0.69
Footcare	0.64	0.75	0.69
Duration of DM	0.63	0.79	0.71
Blood sugar	0.62	0.83	0.73
Neuropathy status	0.62	0.75	0.69
Skin temperature	0.61	0,84	0.73
Mean	0.61	0.82	0.71

DM; diabetes mellitus, Cr; authority coefficients'; familiarity with the field, Ca; criteria

Table 2. Coefficients and significance of variables

Variables	M+SD	CV
Check feet every day	7.0+4.0	0.57
Check using monofilament test	8.0+3.0	0.38
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	8.0+3.0	0.38
Check ultrasonography	7.0+4.0	0.57
Knowledge wound healing	8.0+3.0	0.38
Diet pattern	7.0+4.0	0.57

Activity pattern	6.5±4.5	0.69
Footcare	7.5±3.5	0.47
Duration of DM	9.0±2.0	0.22
Blood sugar	9.0±2.0	0.22
Skin temperature	6.5±4.5	0.69
Amputation previous	7.5±3.5	0.47
Neuropathy status	9.0±2.0	0.22
Mean	7.8±3.1	0.41

M, mean, SD, standard deviation, CV, coefficient of variation

Dear author(s),

After greeting

Please correct the following item:

With best regards

Editorial team

First page

Kindly note that the first page in your manuscript is not based on IJNMR template. Please refer to: <https://nm.mui.ac.ir/fa/ijnmr/format> for further information. Send first page with the following format: Word 97- Document

Article

Your article cannot be reviewed as original article. If you like, modify your article and submit that as a short communications article.

Reviewers' comments

These risk factors are specified in other articles. Many studies have reported risk factors in any way. The present topic did not require the use of the Delphi technique, as the result is clear. The writing is very poor.

The article is repetitive and it doesn't contain anything new for journal readers. Please see below a list of some articles that might be related to your manuscript under review and use them as necessary:

- Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: A prospective 2-year follow-up study in Egypt
- Risk factors for the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers among diabetic patients: a meta-analysis
- Risk Factors for Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers
- Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup
- Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer: A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study)—Two-Year Follow-Up Study
- Risk of diabetic foot ulcer and its associated factors among Bangladeshi subjects: a multicentric cross-sectional study
- Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup
- The Complexity of Diabetic Foot Management: From Common Care to Best Practice. The Italian Expert Opinion by Delphi Survey

In all sections of the article

1. Please strengthen the different sections of the article (especially the introduction, discussion and application of the results) concerning the journal scope (nursing or midwifery).
2. Please integrate the separate paragraphs together all through the article.

Abstract

1. Arrange abstract sections as the following order

Background, Materials and Methods, Results, Conclusions, Keywords

2. Abstract should not exceed 150 words

Materials and Methods

1. Materials and Methods does not need separate sections (please combine Separate sections)
2. Please add the year of the study at the beginning of the materials and methods.

Ethical considerations

1. Add the Ethical considerations after the Materials & Methods (add ethics committee code and date)

Discussion

1. Please mention **limitations** of the study clearly at the end of discussion.

References

1. When you need to mention an old reference, use references preferably up to 5-10 years old.
2. The references in the article should be written according to the format of the journal ((References should be numeric))
3. References should not exceed 15 references

Tables and figures

1. Move the tables and the figure to the end of references
2. If you have downloaded figures, send it copyright
3. All figures in the article must have a title and number
4. The number of the tables should not exceed 2 numbers.

please notice that if the number of the words exceeds the regular number should not exceed 1000 words), you should pay extra US \$ 50 for each 600 words(each diagram or figure equals 300 extra words)

please refer to:

<http://www.ijnmrjournal.net/contributors.asp> for further information.

Please refer to:

https://nm.mui.ac.ir/sites/nm/files/pdf/ijnmr/ijnmr_publication_fee_1.doc

For further information.

Reply to the reviewers' comments

Reviewer Number	Original comments of the reviewer	Reply by the author(s)	Changes done on page number and line number
MS2	It would have been better if this article had talked more about the risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. To be able to use its results as a guideline to prevent future recurrence of the disease, which improves the quality of care for diabetic foot ulcers. But in this article, the focus was on the Delphi members and the Delphi method, and very little attention was paid to the recurrence results	Thank you for your kind reminders for improving our manuscript. We revised and added more about the recurrence in the results and discussion	The results: Page 6-7, line 146-164 Discussion: Page 7-9, line 167-217
toghyani	In the introduction, please also talk about the technique used; why did you use the Delphi technique? What are the benefits of using this technique? And...	Thank you for your kind reminders. We revised and added as your request in introduction	Page 2-3, line 51-72
asus	The type of study should be given	Thank you for your kind reminders. Thank you for your kind reminders. We added Delphi technique in abstract	Page 1, line 7
toghyani	Unknown field code changed	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 2, line 43

toghyani	Unknown field code changed	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 2, line 47
asus	Sample size - year - place - be mentioned	Thank you for your kind reminders. We added as your suggestion.	Page 1, line 7-13
MS2	You can use the 'Delphi Method' as another keyword.	Thank you for your nice reminder. We added Delphi method as keyword	Page 1, line 27
toghyani	Unknown field code changed	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 2 line 43
toghyani	Unknown field code changed	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 2 line 47
MS2	The introduction is short, at least one more paragraph should be added.	Thank you for your nice reminders. We added as your suggestion. We added new paragraph about prevalence, impact of recurrence, Delphi method (what, why and advantage)	Page 2-3, line 51-72
MS2	Please write the "Materials and Methods" in separate paragraphs	Thank you for your kind reminders. We revised and separated between materials and methods	Materials: Page 3, line 75-91 Methods: Page 4, line 92-136
toghyani	Check speliing and grammar	Thank you for your kind reminder. We revised	Page 3, line 89
MS2	The role of patients in this section is not clearly stated.	Thank you for your kind reminder. As we mentioned in materials and methods section. To test inter-rater agreement, we used diabetic patients. Therefore, in the result was added.	Page 6, line 154-156
MS2	It is suggested that in addition to Delphi method and data of this technique, data related to recurrence factors should also be mentioned.	Thank you for your suggestion to improve our manuscript. We revised and added Delphi method and data of this technique. Also, data related to recurrence	Page 6, line 167-187

MS2	The discussion is written in line with the data on diabetes recurrence.	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised and added more data on diabetes recurrence in discussion section	Page 7, line 175-217
MS2	Delete this title	Thank you for your nice reminder. We deleted this title	Deleted
MS2	only this!!!! These data should be statistically presented in the results section.	Thank you for your kind reminders. We revised and presented data statistically. We presented these results because had high score statistically.	Page 6, line 158-160
MS2	This section should be given in the discussion section with more details and comparison of each result with similar and contradictory articles.	Thank you for your nice reminders. We revised discussion section with more detail and comparison of each similar and contradictory article	Page 8-9, line 185-219
toghyani	Check speliing and grammar	Thank you for your nice reminders. We checked	
MS2	What was the reason for this limitation? What is your suggestion for this limitation?	Thank you for your kind reminder. We revised and added several limitations. Then, we added our suggestion for the limitation in future	Page 9, line 219-225
MS2	In this article, it is better to talk more about family, patient, quality of life, and causes of diabetes recurrence.	Thank you for your kind reminders. We revised and added role of health providers, medical and nurses to prevent recurrence. Also, role of patient and their family to reduce and prevent recurrence with increasing knowledge about wound healing and skin temperature on foot, and control blood sugar regularly.	Page 9, line 228-233

asus	Conclusion Revision in three separate paragraphs Dedicate the first paragraph to a summary of the findings and apply the second paragraph to the results and suggest the third paragraph for further research in this field.	Thank you for your nice reminder. We revised conclusion in three separate paragraphs. First paragraph one, we added the summary of finding. Second paragraph, we added the result of finding. Finally, third paragraph we added suggestion in future	Page 10, line 236-245
asus	Bring a new reference 2022	Thank you very much for your nice reminders. We revised using some new references	Page 11, line 262-338
toghyani	Unknow field code changed	Thank you very much for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 11, line 262
MS2	In the results section, refer to the data from this table.	Thank you for your kind reminder. We revised and added these data in result section	Page 6, line 158-159
toghyani	Table 1	Thank you very much for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 15, line 378
toghyani	Table 2	Thank you very much for your nice reminders. We revised	Page 16, line 399

Dear author(s)

After greeting

Please revise the manuscript according to reviewers' comments as the followings using the track change system. If you do not agree with the reviewer's comment, please mention that in the comment box. Do not remove the comments and track changes in the comment file and upload it as the comment file in the system. Then, accept the track changes and remove comments and upload it as the final revised article file

You should use the track change system in your comment file when you answer the reviews comments

This **cross-sectional**, one-group, pre-post-teaching study was carried out on 60 first year nursing students from a professional teaching institute in Maharashtra. A non-probability convenience sampling technique was used for this study. Before initiating the study, students were explained about the study's procedures and objectives, and then consent was taken from all the participants. Those who were not willing to participate were **exempted**.

With best regards

Editorial team

Editorial team's comments:

In all sections of the article

3. Arrange article sections as the following order

Introduction, Materials and Methods, Ethical considerations, Results, Discussion, Conclusion, References, Tables

4. Remove italics and bolded from the word and sentences
5. Remove dent from the begging of paragraph
6. Please integrate the separate paragraphs together all through the article.
7. Please write what the abbreviation stands for, if appeared in the text for the first time.

Before the abbreviations, the first letter of each word should be written in capital letters

For example: Iranian Journal of Nursing and Midwifery Research (IJNMR)

8. Please mention mean (SD) Before reporting their values
9. In cases when $p=0.000$ replace it with $p<0.001$ all through the article.
10. Please integrate the separate paragraphs together all through the article.
11. Except p-values, round numbers after point up to two digits all through the article and tables consistently. If the second digit after point is zero, add 0, for example, 5.20.

Commented [p11]: The name of the study is incorrect, please correct it. A quasi-experimental or interventional study should be provided

Commented [p12]: Mention type of study

Deleted: cross-sectional,

Commented [p13]: Please describe how determine sample size

Commented [p14]: Mention place of study

Commented [p15]: Name the country and year of study

Commented [p16]: Determine the sample size and mention the criteria for entering and leaving the samples
Criteria

Deleted: exempted

Abstract

3. Arrange abstract sections as the following order

Background, Materials and Methods, Results, Conclusions, Keywords

4. Abstract should not exceed 250 words
5. Results of statistical tests (if significant for T, F)and df and relevant p values should be mentioned the result of the abstract and the article: for examples:

($F_{1,67}=1089, p<0.001$).

($t_{54}=2.39, p=0.01$)

($\chi^2=15.79, df=1, p<0.001$)

6. Check your key words in mesh

Introduction

Mention the introduction in 2 or 3 paragraphs

Materials and Methods

1. Please add the year of the study at the beginning of the materials and methods.
3. sections)
4. Please mention how the sample size was calculated? (Provide power, Sig,...). The formula is not needed to be written. Write the exact values and all components of the formula. For example: sample size was calculated according to power analysis with $z1=...$, $z2=...$, $r=...$ ()
5. Please write the type of the study at the beginning of the methods.
6. Please provide complete name and the manufacturer details of the SPSS

Ethical considerations

2. Add the Ethical considerations after the Materials & Methods (add ethics committee code and date)

Discussion

2. Please combine the limitation section with the end of the discussion. (research limitation does not need a separate section)

References

4. When you need to mention an old reference, use references preferably up to 5-10 years old.

Tables

1. Please Cite the number of tables in the article sequentially(first cite the number of 1 and then 2,3,4...)
2. Avoid using mean +- SD but use mean(SD) in a unique column
3. Avoid mentioning percentage in a separate column. Please report that in a unique column in parenthesis.N(%)
4. Please put the statistics in the head of columns in all tables. For example: Mean (SD) or N(%).
5. Please expand the abbreviations under the table.
6. First report the statistical test results (such as F) and then df and then p-values.
7. Please integrate mean and standard deviation's columns together, for example: mean (sd) all through tables.

Figure.

1. if you have downloaded this figure, send it copyright

Reviewers' comments: as the followings

Thanks the authors for their attempts to preparing the article; there is some problem about the article that should be considered before publication:

1. It is better to use newer references, preferably in the last 5 years.
2. In the introduction, please also talk about the technique used; why did you use the Delphi technique? What are the benefits of using this technique? And...

Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method

Abstract

Background: Risk factors of recurrence have not been much elucidated. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors involved in the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers. **Materials and methods:** This study was divided into two phases, firstly is, the development of a category used to investigate the risk factors of recurrent diabetic foot ulcers by experts. Secondly phase is, the development of the recurrent items risk factors using the Delphi method. Finally, all the risk factor variables were clinically tested for inter-rater reliability agreement. **Results:** There were thirteen list risk factors for recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Mean authority coefficient was 0.71. Positive coefficients were 100% and 78% respectively. Kendall coordination coefficient was statistically significant (χ^2 test, $P < 0.01$), and inter-rater reliability agreement was perfect (1.00). **Conclusions:** This study demonstrated that there were several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future.

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Left, Level 1, Space Before: 3 pt, Line spacing: At least 20 pt

Commented [M217]: It would have been better if this article had talked more about the risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. To be able to use its results as a guideline to prevent future recurrence of the disease, which improves the quality of care for diabetic foot ulcers. But in this article, the focus was on the Delphi members and the Delphi method, and very little attention was paid to the recurrence results.

Commented [a18]: The type of study should be given

Commented [a19]: Sample size - year - place - be mentioned

Keywords: Diabetic foot, recurrence, risk factors

Commented [M220]:
You can use the 'Delphi Method' as another keyword.

Introduction

According to the International Diabetes Federation, the prevalence of diabetes patients in Indonesia would rise from 10.3 million in 2017 to 10.7 million by 2045.^[1] This report ranks Indonesia as the 6th globally, indicating a steady increase in diabetes patients. Furthermore, diabetic foot ulcers are commonly observed among diabetes patients, with varying prevalence in different countries.^[2] In Indonesia, this disease is known to be predominant in 7.3-24% of individuals.^[3] According to a study, these individuals have a 10-20 times risk of amputation compared to non-diabetics,^[4] with an incidence of 25% in Indonesia.^[5]

This disease has the risk of recurring or developing a new ulcer and also serious implications for QOL, hence, its prevention is necessary. Furthermore, recurrence can occur at the same location or a new site. Clarifying the risk factors associated with this

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar
Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar
Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar
Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar
Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar
Field Code Changed

disease is essential to inhibit a new development. These risk factors for the onset of diabetic foot ulcers have been clarified,^[6] however, the determinants for its recurrence are yet to be elucidated. Thus, it is very important to be known and understood, which can ultimately prevent complication. In addition, the development of risk factors including patient is still little. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors associated with recurrence.

Commented [M221]: The introduction is short, at least one more paragraph should be added.

Materials and Methods

Commented [M222]: Please write the "Materials and Methods" in separate paragraphs

Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020. The Delphi method was used in this study, with the inclusion of experts and patients as participants. Experts with more than 10 years experience in a hospital or clinic, a bachelor's or higher degree, and wound training or certificate were included. Subsequently, the patients with diabetic foot ulcers had to be ≥ 21 years of age, had recurrence (the same or another location), and received a diagnosis of type 2 DM according to the American Diabetes Association 2013 guidelines. This diagnosis consists of glycated haemoglobin $\geq 6.5\%$ and fasting blood glucose ≥ 126 mg/dl (7.0 mmol/l) or 2-hour plasma glucose ≥ 200 mg/dl (11.1 mmol/l) during an oral glucose tolerance test.^[7]

Formatted: English (US), Check spelling and grammar

Patients who did not fulfill these criteria were not permitted to participate in the study. Also, informed consent was obtained from the participants and their family members. In the first phase, the questionnaire-based literature review and reference were developed using the google form application to obtain information from experts about recurrence risk factors. These questionnaires were sent by email and contained: 1) Instructions of the research background, time returned, contact information, and acknowledgment, and 2) The suggestion from experts about "risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers". Moreover, this phase took place between

February 15 and March 25, 2020. Based on input from experts, the questionnaires in the second phase were also developed through the google form application. These experts were obtained using previously identified variables to collect risk factors associated with recurrence. Furthermore, this instrument was structured similarly to phase one, where the risk factors' evaluation form on diabetic foot ulcer recurrence was the only difference, with a score ranging from 1-4 (1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, 4=strongly agree). All questionnaires were sent via email and between August 31 and September 28, 2020. Subsequently, two patients were used as raters to investigate the reliability agreement in a clinical setting. The questionnaires from the variable risk factors of recurrence in the second phase yielded a mean authority coefficient of 0.71. These variables included: 1) feet check, 2) knowledge, 3) diet pattern, 4) activity pattern, 5) foot care, 6) DM duration, 7) blood sugar value, 8) neuropathy status, 9) monofilament test check, 10) ankle-brachial pressure index examination, 11) ultrasonography assessment, 12) skin temperature, and 13) previous amputation. The questionnaire scoring included: 1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, and 4=strongly agree. Moreover, data analysis was conducted with the IBM SPSS software (version 26.0., IBM Corp., Armonk, NY, USA). Each item was described using descriptive statistics, such as mean and standard deviation, while the Delphi method's reliability and validity were examined using expert opinion consensus and calculation of the positive predicative value. The authority coefficients (Cr) were determined by two factors, namely the familiarity with the field (Cs) and criteria (Ca). Consequently, Cs used a value between 0.0-0.9^[8] to determine the five degrees of familiarity, namely very, more, generally, less, and not familiar.^[9] The terms "practical experience (0.5, 0.4, and 0.3)," "theoretical analysis (0.3, 0.2 and 0.1)," "domestic and foreign references" (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) and "subjective judgement (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1)

were used to divide Ca into more, medium and less. In addition, the degree of expert authority was expressed by $Cr:Cr = (Ca + Cs) / 2$ while coordination was altered based on the variable and coordination coefficients.^[8] The Kendall's concordance coefficient was also used to reflect the coordination level of experts' opinion with a value between 0 and 1, where a higher denomination indicates a better coordination. Furthermore, Cohen's Kappa was used to analyse the patient's inter-rater reliability agreement. The level of significance was set at $p < 0.05$.

Ethical considerations

This study was approved by the Ethics Review Committee of STIK Muhammadiyah Pontianak, West Kalimantan Province (Ethical Approval Number: 62/II.I.AU/KET.ETIK/II/2020, and Date: February 2nd, 2020). Also, participation was voluntary, anonymous, and confidential. All participants received the consent document through the google form application and were requested to respond with a fill and return, indicating their readiness to participate in the study.

Results

In this study, the mean age of experts and total working time was 39.4 ± 1.4 and 10.9 ± 1.6 years, respectively, with five having worked for >10 years. Furthermore, among these experts one had a Ph.D. in medical surgery, three had a doctorate, two had a masters, and three possessed a bachelor's degree. Five of these individuals were from the wound clinic in West Kalimantan, two from the Middle Java's wound clinic, and one each from the wound clinics in Jakarta, Aceh, West Sulawesi and, East Kalimantan. The mean working time and age of the second Delphi experts were 11.2 ± 1.7 and 39.2 ± 1.5 years, respectively. Also, one expert had a surgeon's medical

Commented [M223]: It is suggested that in addition to Delphi method and data of this technique, data related to recurrence factors should also be mentioned.

doctorate, three had a doctorate, while two and five had a master's and bachelor's degree. The positive coefficient was 100% (14 experts) in the first phase and 78% in the second. Table 1 shows that the mean authority coefficient in the second phase was 0.71 while Table 2 illustrates the mean variable coefficient was 0.41. Subsequently, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was 0.177 ($\chi^2=25.359$, $df=13$, $p=0.02$) with a perfect inter-rater reliability agreement of 1.00.

Commented [M224]: The role of patients in this section is not clearly stated.

Discussion

This is the first study that aims to investigate the risk factors associated with recurrence using expert's opinion and their experience. Moreover, recurrence patients were used as participants, with different variables between the first and second phases, as indicated by the experts based on their experiences. The variables were also consistent with the patient's opinions. Experts with a bachelor's or higher degree and >10 years working experience in a hospital or clinic were questioned. These individuals were familiar with the study content and had in-depth knowledge of diabetic foot ulcers. The representation of experts was acceptable and the participants included diabetes patients.

Commented [M225]: The discussion is written in line with the data on diabetes recurrence.

Reliability

First, positive coefficients indicated that experts were interested and optimistic about the study, with a high positive response rate of 60% or above.^[10] Second, the literature demonstrated that these individuals could be considered of high authority if a coefficient > 0.7 was obtained. Third, the variable coefficient mean had a high concentration of expert suggestions. These retained literature suggestion items should have a score >3.5. (11) Finally, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was consistent, hence choosing appropriate experts was the key to a successful Delphi method.^[11]

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Field Code Changed

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Field Code Changed

Recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors

Our study demonstrated that there some recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

Neuropathy status, blood sugar and previous amputation were risk factor of recurrent diabetic foot ulcer. Thus, similarly with previous study^{[6],[12]} A previous study reported that the duration of diabetes increased with the risk of diabetic foot ulcer recurrence.^[6] Education about pre-ulcerative signs and foot care play an important role in the prevention of diabetic foot ulcers.^[13] Screening such as monofilament test ABPI and ultrasound are important to early detection peripheral arterial ischemia in diabetic foot ulcer.^[13] Checking skin temperature, which is a feasible procedure, aids the prevention of recurrence.^[14] The last variables are activity and dietary pattern. The American Diabetes Association recommended physical activity and management of food on diabetes to prevent complication particularly diabetic foot ulcer.^[15]

Generally, all variables were consistent with previous studies. hence, they can be used to investigate risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers by health care professional (clinicians, nurses and others). However, the current study has limitation. Participant in inter-rater reliability agreement test was relatively small. Thus, generalizability may be limited.

Implication for clinical settings

Commented [M226]: Delete this title

Commented [M227]: only this!!!!
These data should be statistically presented in the results section.

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Field Code Changed

Field Code Changed

Commented [M228]: This section should be given in the discussion section with more details and comparison of each result with similar and contradictory articles.

Commented [M229]: What was the reason for this limitation?
What is your suggestion for this limitation?

The recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers was related to several risk factors, which could be prevented by involving the patients and their families. Consequently, the patient's quality of life is improved.

Commented [M230]: In this article, it is better to talk more about family, patient, quality of life, and causes of diabetes recurrence.

Conclusion

This study demonstrated that there are several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future that will improve quality of nursing of diabetic foot ulcer patients.

Commented [a31]: Conclusion Revision in three separate paragraphs Dedicate the first paragraph to a summary of the findings and apply the second paragraph to the results and suggest the third paragraph for further research in this field.

References

1. Federation International Diabetes. IDF Diabetes Atlas. Ninth. 2019.
2. Zhang P, Lu J, Jing Y, et al. Global epidemiology of diabetic foot ulceration: a systematic review and meta-analysis†. *Ann Med*. 2017 Feb 17;49(2):106–16.
3. Soewondo P, Ferrario A, Tahapary D. Challenges in diabetes management in Indonesia: a literature review. *Global Health*. 2013;9(1):63.
4. Moxey PW, Gogalniceanu P, Hinchliffe RJ, Loftus IM, Jones KJ, Thompson MM, et al. Lower extremity amputations - a review of global variability in incidence. *Diabet Med*. 2011;28(10):1144–53.
5. Aru W. Sudoyo. dkk. *Buku Ajar Ilmu Penyakit Dalam Jilid III Edisi VI. Ilmu Penyakit Dalam*. 2014.
6. Khalifa WA. Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: a prospective 2-

Commented [a32]: Bring a new reference 2022

Formatted: Check spelling and grammar

Field Code Changed

years follow-up study in Egypt. *Foot*. 2017;

7. Goyal A, Gupta Y, Singla R, Kalra S, Tandon N. American Diabetes Association “ Standards of Medical Care — 2020 for Gestational Diabetes Mellitus ”: A Critical Appraisal. *Diabetes Ther*. 2020;11(8):1639–44.
8. Liu Y, Liu HP. Establishing nursing adverse events’ reporting content of hospital: Using the Delphi method. *Front Nurs*. 2021;7(4):337–44.
9. Geng Y, Zhao L, Wang Y, Jiang Y, Meng K, Zheng D. Competency model for dentists in China: Results of a Delphi study. *PLoS One*. 2018;13(3).
10. Fincham JE. Response rates and responsiveness for surveys, standards, and the Journal. *Am J Pharm Educ*. 2008;72(2):43.
11. Medicine C on Q of HC in AI of. *Crossing the Quality Chasm A New Health System for the 21st Century*. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press; 2001. 360 pages.
12. Yazdanpanah L, Shahbazian H, Nazari I, Arti HR, Ahmadi F, Mohammadianinejad SE, et al. Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer : A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study) — Two-Year Follow-Up Study. *Int J Endocrinol*. 2018;2018:1–9.
13. Nicolaas C, Schaper, Jaap J. van Netten, Jan Apelqvist, Sicco A. Bus, Robert J. Hinchliffe BAL. *IWGDF Guidelines on the prevention and management of diabetic foot disease IWGDF Guidelines*. 2019.
14. Skafjeld A, Iversen MM, Holme I, Ribu L, Hvaal K, Kilhovd BK. A pilot study testing the feasibility of skin temperature monitoring to reduce recurrent foot ulcers in patients with diabetes – a randomized controlled trial. *BMC Endocr Disord*. 2015;15(55):1–7.
15. Colberg SR, Sigal RJ, Yardley JE, Riddell MC, Dunstan DW, Dempsey PC, et

al. Physical Activity / Exercise and Diabetes : A Position Statement of the American Diabetes Association. Diabetes Care. 2016;39(November):2065–79.

Table 1: Coefficient expert of authority of variables

Variables	Ca	Cs	Cr
Check feet every day	0.58	0.87	0.72
Check using monofilament test	0.57	0.85	0.71
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	0.60	0.85	0.72
Check using ultrasonography	0.55	0.85	0.70
Amputation previous	0.62	0.82	0.72
Knowledge wound healing	0.62	0.85	0.73
Diet pattern	0.61	0.81	0.71
Activity pattern	0.61	0.77	0.69
Footcare	0.64	0.75	0.69
Duration of DM	0.63	0.79	0.71
Blood sugar	0.62	0.83	0.73
Neuropathy status	0.62	0.75	0.69
Skin temperature	0.61	0.84	0.73
Mean	0.61	0.82	0.71

DM; diabetes mellitus, Cr; authority coefficients; familiarity with the field, Ca; criteria

Formatted Table

Table 2. Coefficients and significance of variables

Variables	M±SD	CV
Check feet every day	7.0±4.0	0.57
Check using monofilament test	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ultrasonography	7.0±4.0	0.57
Knowledge wound healing	8.0±3.0	0.38
Diet pattern	7.0±4.0	0.57
Activity pattern	6.5±4.5	0.69
Footcare	7.5±3.5	0.47
Duration of DM	9.0±2.0	0.22
Blood sugar	9.0±2.0	0.22
Skin temperature	6.5±4.5	0.69
Amputation previous	7.5±3.5	0.47
Neuropathy status	9.0±2.0	0.22
Mean	7.8±3.1	0.41

M, mean, SD, standard deviation, CV, coefficient of variation

Formatted Table

Commented [M233]: In the results section, refer to the data from this table.

Dear author(s),

After greeting

Please correct the following item:

With best regards

Editorial team

First page

Kindly note that the first page in your manuscript is not based on IJNMR template. Please refer to: <https://nm.mui.ac.ir/fa/ijnmr/format> for further information. Send first page with the following format: Word 97- Document

Article

Your article cannot be reviewed as original article. If you like, modify your article and submit that as a short communications article.

Reviewers' comments

These risk factors are specified in other articles. Many studies have reported risk factors in any way. The present topic did not require the use of the Delphi technique, as the result is clear. The writing is very poor.

The article is repetitive and it doesn't contain anything new for journal readers. Please see below a list of some articles that might be related to your manuscript under review and use them as necessary:

- [Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: A prospective 2-year follow-up study in Egypt](#)
- [Risk factors for the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers among diabetic patients: a meta-analysis](#)
- [Risk Factors for Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers](#)
- [Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup](#)
- [Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer: A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort \(ADFC Study\)—Two-Year Follow-Up Study](#)
- [Risk of diabetic foot ulcer and its associated factors among Bangladeshi subjects: a multicentric cross-sectional study](#)
- [Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup](#)
- [The Complexity of Diabetic Foot Management: From Common Care to Best Practice. The Italian Expert Opinion by Delphi Survey](#)

In all sections of the article

12. Please strengthen the different sections of the article (especially the introduction, discussion and application of the results) concerning the journal scope (nursing or midwifery).

13. Please integrate the separate paragraphs together all through the article.

Abstract

7. Arrange abstract sections as the following order

Background, Materials and Methods, Results, Conclusions, Keywords

8. Abstract should not exceed 150 words

Materials and Methods

7. Materials and Methods does not need separate sections (please combine Separate sections)

8. Please add the year of the study at the beginning of the materials and methods.

Ethical considerations

3. Add the Ethical considerations after the Materials & Methods (add ethics committee code and date)

Discussion

3. Please mention limitations of the study clearly at the end of discussion.

References

5. When you need to mention an old reference, use references preferably up to 5-10 years old.

6. The references in the article should be written according to the format of the journal ((References should be numeric))

7. References should not exceed 15 references

Tables and figures

5. Move the tables and the figure to the end of references

6. If you have downloaded figures, send it copyright

7. All figures in the article must have a title and number

8. The number of the tables should not exceed 2 numbers.

please notice that if the number of the words exceeds the regular number should not exceed 1000 words), you should pay extra US \$ 50 for each 600 words(each diagram or figure equals 300 extra words)

please refer to:

<http://www.ijnmrjournal.net/contributors.asp> for further information.

Please refer to:

https://nm.mui.ac.ir/sites/nm/files/pdf/ijnmr/ijnmr_publication_fee_1.doc

For further information

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left: -0,16 cm, Space Before: Auto, After: Auto, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left: -0,16 cm, Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,08 li

Formatted: Font: Calibri, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Left, Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,08 li

Dear author(s)

After greeting

Please revise the manuscript according to reviewers' comments as the followings using the track change system. If you do not agree with the reviewer's comment, please mention that in the comment box. Do not remove the comments and track changes in the comment file and upload it as the comment file in the system. Then, accept the track changes and remove omments and upload it as the final revised article file.

Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method

Abstract

Background: Risk factors of recurrence have not been much elucidated. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors involved in the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers. **Materials and methods:** This study was cross-sectional **used Delphi method, with** two phases, firstly is, the development of a category used to investigate the risk factors of recurrent diabetic foot ulcers by experts. Secondly phase is, the development of the recurrent items risk factors. Finally, all the risk factor variables were clinically tested for inter-rater reliability agreement. **Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020, in Indonesia, used 14 experts.** **Results:** There were thirteen list risk factors for recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Mean authority coefficient was 0.71. Positive coefficients were 100% and 78% respectively. Kendall coordination coefficient was statistically significant (χ^2 test, $P < 0.01$), and inter-rater

Deleted: Dear author(s) ¶
After greeting ¶

Your article needs English editing. Please edit the enclosed file through track change system. Upload it as the comment file in the system. Then, accept all track changes and delete comments in the file and upload it as the final revised article file. Kindly note that your article will be reviewed by English editors ONLY ONCE MORE. ¶

Commented [a34]: 2-Abstract should not exceed 150 words

reliability agreement was perfect (1.00). **Conclusions:** This study demonstrated that there were several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future.

Keywords: *Diabetic foot, recurrence, risk factors*

Introduction

According to the International Diabetes Federation, the prevalence of diabetes patients in Indonesia would rise from 7.3 million in 2011 to 19.5 million by 2021. This report ranks Indonesia as the 2nd in Western Pacific, indicating a steady increase in diabetes patients.^[1] Furthermore, diabetic foot ulcers are commonly observed among diabetes patients, with varying prevalence in different countries.^[2] In Indonesia, this disease is known to be predominant in 7.3-24% of individuals.^[3] According to a study, these individuals have a 10-20 times risk of amputation compared to non-diabetics,^[4] with an incidence of 25% in Indonesia.^[5]

This disease has the risk of recurring or developing a new ulcer and also serious implications for QOL, hence, its prevention is necessary. Furthermore, recurrence can occur at the same location or a new site. Clarifying the risk factors associated with this disease is essential to inhibit a new development. These risk factors for the onset of diabetic foot ulcers have been clarified,^[6] however, the determinants for its recurrence are yet to be elucidated. Thus, it is very important to be known and understood, which can ultimately prevent complication. In addition, the development of risk factors including patient is still little. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors associated with recurrence.

Materials and Methods

Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020. The Delphi method was used in this study, with the inclusion of experts and patients as participants. Experts with more than 10 years experience in a hospital or clinic, a bachelor's or higher degree, and wound training or certificate were included. Subsequently, the patients with diabetic foot ulcers had to be ≥ 21 years of age, had recurrence (the same or another location), and received a diagnosis of type 2 DM according to the American Diabetes Association 2013 guidelines. This diagnosis consists of glycated haemoglobin $\geq 6.5\%$ and fasting blood glucose ≥ 126 mg/dl (7.0 mmol/l) or 2-hour plasma glucose ≥ 200 mg/dl (11.1 mmol/l) during an oral glucose tolerance test.^[7] Patients who did not fulfill these criteria were not permitted to participate in the study. Also, informed consent was obtained from the participants and their family members. In the first phase, the questionnaire-based literature review and reference were developed using the google form application to obtain information from experts about recurrence risk factors. These questionnaires were sent by email and contained: 1)

Commented [a35]: 1. Please mention how the sample size was calculated? (Provide power, Sig,...). The formula is not needed to be written. Write the exact values and all components of the formula. For example: sample size was calculated according to power analysis with $z_1 = \dots$, $z_2 = \dots$, $r = \dots$ ()

Instructions of the research background, time returned, contact information, and acknowledgment, and 2) The suggestion from experts about “risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers”. Moreover, this phase took place between February 15 and March 25, 2020. Based on input from experts, the questionnaires in the second phase were also developed through the google form application. These experts were obtained using previously identified variables to collect risk factors associated with recurrence. Furthermore, this instrument was structured similarly to phase one, where the risk factors’ evaluation form on diabetic foot ulcer recurrence was the only difference, with a score ranging from 1-4 (1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, 4=strongly agree). All questionnaires were sent via email and between August 31 and September 28, 2020. Subsequently, two patients were used as raters to investigate the reliability agreement in a clinical setting. The questionnaires from the variable risk factors of recurrence in the second phase yielded a mean authority coefficient of 0.71. These variables included: 1) feet check, 2) knowledge, 3) diet pattern, 4) activity pattern, 5) foot care, 6) DM duration, 7) blood sugar value, 8) neuropathy status, 9) monofilament test check, 10) ankle-brachial pressure index examination, 11) ultrasonography assessment, 12) skin temperature, and 13) previous amputation. The questionnaire scoring included: 1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, and 4=strongly agree. Moreover, data analysis was conducted with the IBM SPSS software (version 26.0., IBM Corp., Armonk, NY, USA). Each item was described using descriptive statistics, such as mean and standard deviation, while the Delphi method’s reliability and validity were examined using expert opinion consensus and calculation of the positive predicative value. The authority coefficients (Cr) were determined by two factors, namely the familiarity with the field (Cs) and criteria (Ca). Consequently, Cs used a value between 0.0-0.9^[8] to determine the five degrees of

familiarity, namely very, more, generally, less, and not familiar.^[9] The terms "practical experience (0.5, 0.4, and 0.3)," "theoretical analysis (0.3, 0.2 and 0.1)," "domestic and foreign references" (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) and "subjective judgement (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) were used to divide Ca into more, medium and less. In addition, the degree of expert authority was expressed by Cr: $Cr = (Ca + Cs) / 2$ while coordination was altered based on the variable and coordination coefficients.^[8] The Kendall's concordance coefficient was also used to reflect the coordination level of experts' opinion with a value between 0 and 1, where a higher denomination indicates a better coordination. Furthermore, Cohen's Kappa was used to analyse the patient's inter-rater reliability agreement. The level of significance was set at $p < 0.05$.

Ethical considerations

This study was approved by the Ethics Review Committee of STIK Muhammadiyah Pontianak, West Kalimantan Province (Ethical Approval Number: 62/II.I.AU/KET.ETIK/II/2020, and Date: February 2nd, 2020). Also, participation was voluntary, anonymous, and confidential. All participants received the consent document through the google form application and were requested to respond with a fill and return, indicating their readiness to participate in the study.

Results

In this study, the mean age of experts and total working time was 39.4 ± 1.4 and 10.9 ± 1.6 years, respectively, with five having worked for >10 years. Furthermore, among these experts one had a Ph.D. in medical surgery, three had a doctorate, two had a masters, and three possessed a bachelor's degree. Five of these individuals were from the wound clinic in West Kalimantan, two from the Middle Java's wound

clinic, and one each from the wound clinics in Jakarta, Aceh, West Sulawesi and, East Kalimantan. The mean working time and age of the second Delphi experts were 11.2±1.7 and 39.2±1.5 years, respectively. Also, one expert had a surgeon's medical doctorate, three had a doctorate, while two and five had a master's and bachelor's degree. The positive coefficient was 100% (14 experts) in the first phase and 78% in the second. Table 1 shows that the mean authority coefficient in the second phase was 0.71 while Table 2 illustrates the mean variable coefficient was 0.41. Subsequently, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was 0.177 ($X^2=25.359$, $df=13$, $p=0.02$) with a perfect inter-rater reliability agreement of 1.00.

Discussion

This is the first study that aims to investigate the risk factors associated with recurrence using expert's opinion and their experience. Moreover, recurrence patients were used as participants, with different variables between the first and second phases, as indicated by the experts based on their experiences. The variables were also consistent with the patient's opinions. Experts with a bachelor's or higher degree and >10 years working experience in a hospital or clinic were questioned. These individuals were familiar with the study content and had in-depth knowledge of diabetic foot ulcers. The representation of experts was acceptable and the participants included diabetes patients.

Reliability

First, positive coefficients indicated that experts were interested and optimistic about the study, with a high positive response rate of 60% or above.^[10] Second, the literature demonstrated that these individuals could be considered of high authority if a coefficient > 0.7 was obtained. Third, the variable coefficient mean had a high concentration of expert

Commented [a36]: Use () instead of ± to indicate Mean (SD) all through the article.

Commented [a37]: 1.Except p-values, round numbers after point up to two digits all through the article and tables consistently. If the second digit after point is zero, add 0 , for example, 5.20.

Commented [a38]: Discussion does not need separate sections(please combine Separate sections)

suggestions. These retained literature suggestion items should have a score >3.5. [11]
Finally, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was consistent, hence choosing appropriate experts was the key to a successful Delphi method. [11]

Recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors

Our study demonstrated that there some recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

Neuropathy status, blood sugar and previous amputation were risk factor of recurrent diabetic foot ulcer. Thus, similarly with previous study.^{[6],[12]} A previous study reported that the duration of diabetes increased with the risk of diabetic foot ulcer recurrence.^[6] Education about pre-ulcerative signs and foot care play an important role in the prevention of diabetic foot ulcers.^[13] Screening such as monofilament test ABPI and ultrasound are important to early detection peripheral arterial ischemia in diabetic foot ulcer.^[13] Checking skin temperature, which is a feasible procedure, aids the prevention of recurrence.^[14] The last variables are activity and dietary pattern. The American Diabetes Association recommended physical activity and management of food on diabetes to prevent complication particularly diabetic foot ulcer.^[15]

Generally, all variables were consistent with previous studies. hence, they can be used to investigate risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers by health care professional (clinicians, nurses and others). However, the current study has limitation. Participant in inter-rater reliability agreement test was relatively small. Thus, generalizability may be limited.

Implication for clinical settings

The recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers was related to several risk factors, which could be prevented by involving the patients and their families. Consequently, the patient's quality of life is improved.

Commented [a39]: 1. Mention research limitation at the end of discussion but not in a separate section

Conclusion

This study demonstrated that there are several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

Commented [a40]: please combine Separate paragraphs.

These variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future that will improve quality of nursing of diabetic foot ulcer patients.

Future research is needed to evaluate these risk factors to recurrent diabetic foot ulcers patients with larger sample in clinical setting.

Commented [a41]: 1. Please add the approved project number in acknowledgments
Please add Acknowledgments(add the approved project number in acknowledgments) , Financial support and sponsorship, Conflict of interest, before references

References

1. International Diabetes Federation. IDF Diabetes Atlas 2022 Report [Internet]. 2022. Available from: <https://diabetesatlas.org/regional-factsheets/>
2. Zhang P, Lu J, Jing Y, et al. Global epidemiology of diabetic foot ulceration: a systematic review and meta-analysis†. *Ann Med* 2017;49(2):106–16.

Commented [a42]: 1. When you need to mention an old reference, use references preferably up to 5-7 years old.

3. Soewondo P, Ferrario A, Tahapary D. Challenges in diabetes management in Indonesia: a literature review. *Global Health* 2013;9(1):63.
4. Moxey PW, Gogalniceanu P, Hinchliffe RJ, Loftus IM, Jones KJ, Thompson MM, et al. Lower extremity amputations - a review of global variability in incidence. *Diabet Med* 2011;28(10):1144–53.
5. Sudoyo AW. *Buku Ajar Ilmu Penyakit Dalam Jilid III Edisi VI*. 2014.
6. Khalifa WA. Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: a prospective 2-years follow-up study in Egypt. *Foot* 2017;
7. Alpesh Goyal; Yashdeep Gupta; Rajiv Singla; Sanjay Kalra. American Diabetes Association “ Standards of Medical Care — 2020 for Gestational Diabetes Mellitus ”: A Critical Appraisal. *Diabetes Ther* 2020;11(8):1639–44.
8. Liu Y, Liu HP. Establishing nursing adverse events' reporting content of hospital: Using the Delphi method. *Front Nurs* 2021;7(4):337–44.
9. Geng Y, Zhao L, Wang Y, Jiang Y, Meng K, Zheng D. Competency model for dentists in China: Results of a Delphi study. *PLoS One* 2018;13(3).
10. Fincham JE. Response rates and responsiveness for surveys, standards, and the Journal. *Am J Pharm Educ* 2008;72(2):43.
11. *Medicine C on Q of HC in AI of. Crossing the Quality Chasm A New Health System for the 21st Century*. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press; 2001.
12. Yazdanpanah L, Shahbazian H, Nazari I, Arti HR, Ahmadi F, Mohammadianinejad SE, et al. Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer : A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study) — Two-Year Follow-Up Study. *Int J Endocrinol* 2018;2018:1–9.
13. Nicolaas C, Schaper, Jaap J. van Netten, Jan Apelqvist, Sicco A. Bus, Robert

J. Hinchliffe BAL. IWGDF Guidelines on the prevention and management of diabetic foot disease IWGDF Guidelines. 2019.

14. Skafjeld A, Iversen MM, Holme I, Ribu L, Hvaal K, Kilhovd BK. A pilot study testing the feasibility of skin temperature monitoring to reduce recurrent foot ulcers in patients with diabetes – a randomized controlled trial. BMC Endocr Disord 2015;15(55):1–7.
15. Colberg SR, Sigal RJ, Yardley JE, Riddell MC, Dunstan DW, Dempsey PC, et al. Physical activity/exercise and diabetes: A position statement of the American Diabetes Association. Diabetes Care 2016;39(11):2065–79.

Table 1: Coefficient expert of authority of variables

Variables	Ca	Cs	Cr
Check feet every day	0.58	0.87	0.72

Commented [a43]: 2.Please mention the abbreviation or statistical tests in the tables with (*, **, ***, ...) and write in full below the table with (*, **, ***, ...).

Commented [a44]:

Check using monofilament test	0.57	0.85	0.71
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	0.60	0.85	0.72
Check using ultrasonography	0.55	0.85	0.70
Amputation previous	0.62	0.82	0.72
Knowledge wound healing	0.62	0.85	0.73
Diet pattern	0.61	0.81	0.71
Activity pattern	0.61	0.77	0.69
Footcare	0.64	0.75	0.69
Duration of DM	0.63	0.79	0.71
Blood sugar	0.62	0.83	0.73
Neuropathy status	0.62	0.75	0.69
Skin temperature	0.61	0,84	0.73
Mean	0.61	0.82	0.71

DM; diabetes mellitus, Cr; authority coefficients'; familiarity with the field, Ca; criteria

Table 2. Coefficients and significance of variables

Variables	M+SD	CV
Check feet every day	7.0±4.0	0.57
Check using monofilament test	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ultrasonography	7.0±4.0	0.57
Knowledge wound healing	8.0±3.0	0.38
Diet pattern	7.0±4.0	0.57
Activity pattern	6.5±4.5	0.69
Footcare	7.5±3.5	0.47
Duration of DM	9.0±2.0	0.22
Blood sugar	9.0±2.0	0.22
Skin temperature	6.5±4.5	0.69
Amputation previous	7.5±3.5	0.47
Neuropathy status	9.0±2.0	0.22
Mean	7.8±3.1	0.41

M, mean, SD, standard deviation, CV, coefficient of variation

Commented [a45]: 1.Avoid using mean +- SD but use mean(SD) in a unique column

Commented [a46]: Please mention the abbreviation or statistical tests in the tables with (*, **, ***, ...) and write in full below the table with (*, **, ***, ...).

Deleted:

Dear author(s),

After greeting

Please correct the following item:

With best regards

Editorial team

First page

Kindly note that the first page in your manuscript is not based on IJNMR template. Please refer

to: <https://nm.mui.ac.ir/fa/ijnmr/format> for further information. Send first page with the following format: Word 97- Document

Article

Your article cannot be reviewed as original article. If you like, modify your article and submit that as a short communications article.

Reviewers' comments

These risk factors are specified in other articles. Many studies have reported risk factors in any way. The present topic did not require the use of the Delphi technique, as the result is clear. The writing is very poor.

The article is repetitive and it doesn't contain anything new for journal readers. Please see below a list of some articles that might be related to your manuscript under review and use them as necessary:

Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: A prospective 2-year follow-up study in Egypt

Risk factors for the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers among diabetic patients: a meta-analysis

Risk Factors for Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers

Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup

Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer: A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study)—Two-Year Follow-Up Study

Risk of diabetic foot ulcer and its associated factors among Bangladeshi subjects: a multicentric cross-sectional study

Risk factors for recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers: prospective follow-up analysis in the Eurodiale subgroup

The Complexity of Diabetic Foot Management: From Common Care to Best Practice. The Italian Expert Opinion by Delphi Survey

In all sections of the article

Please strengthen the different sections of the article (especially the introduction, discussion and application of the results) concerning the journal scope (nursing or midwifery). Please integrate the separate paragraphs together all through the article.

Abstract

Arrange abstract sections as the following order

Background, Materials and Methods, Results, Conclusions, Keywords

Keywords

Abstract should not exceed 150 words

Materials and Methods

Materials and Methods does not need separate sections - (please combine Separate sections)

Please add the year of the study at the beginning of the materials and methods.

Ethical considerations

Add the Ethical considerations after the Materials & Methods (add ethics committee code and date)

Discussion

Please mention limitations of the study clearly at the end of discussion.

References

Risk Factors of Recurrent Diabetic Foot Ulcers Based on the Delphi Method

Abstract

Background: Risk factors of recurrence have not been much elucidated. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors involved in the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers. **Materials and methods:** This study used Delphi method, with two phases, firstly is, the development of a category used to investigate the risk factors of recurrent diabetic foot ulcers by experts. Secondly phase is, the development of the recurrent items risk factors. Finally, all the risk factor variables were clinically tested for inter-rater reliability agreement. Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020, in Indonesia, using 14 experts. **Results:** There were thirteen list risk factors for recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Mean authority coefficient was 0.71. Positive coefficients were 100% and 78% respectively. Kendall coordination coefficient was statistically significant (χ^2 test, $P < 0.01$), and inter-rater reliability agreement was perfect (1.00). **Conclusions:** This study demonstrated that there were several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers. Therefore, these variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future.

Keywords: *Diabetic foot, recurrence, risk factors*

Introduction

According to the International Diabetes Federation, the prevalence of diabetes patients in Indonesia would rise from 10.3 million in 2017 to 10.7 million by 2045.^[1] This report ranks Indonesia as the 6th globally, indicating a steady increase in diabetes patients.

Furthermore, diabetic foot ulcers are commonly observed among diabetes patients, with varying prevalence in different countries.^[2] In Indonesia, this disease is known to be predominant in 7.3-24% of individuals.^[3] According to a study, these individuals have a 10-20 times risk of amputation compared to non-diabetics,^[4] with an incidence of 25% in Indonesia.^[5]

This disease has the risk of recurring or developing a new ulcer and also serious implications for QOL, hence, its prevention is necessary. Furthermore, recurrence can occur at the same location or a new site. Clarifying the risk factors associated with this disease is essential to inhibit a new development. These risk factors for the onset of diabetic foot ulcers have been clarified,^[6] however, the determinants for its recurrence are yet to be elucidated. Thus, it is very important to be known and understood, which can ultimately prevent complication. In addition, the development of risk factors including patient is still little. Therefore, this study aims at investigating the risk factors associated with recurrence.

Materials and Methods

Study was conducted February 15th- September 28th, 2020. The Delphi method was used in this study, with the inclusion of experts and patients as participants. Experts with more than 10 years experience in a hospital or clinic, a bachelor's or higher degree, and wound training or certificate were included. Subsequently, the patients with diabetic foot ulcers had to be ≥ 21 years of age, had recurrence (the same or another location), and received a diagnosis of type 2 DM according to the American Diabetes Association 2013 guidelines. This diagnosis consists of glycated haemoglobin $\geq 6.5\%$ and fasting blood glucose ≥ 126 mg/dl (7.0 mmol/l) or 2-hour plasma glucose ≥ 200 mg/dl (11.1 mmol/l) during an oral glucose tolerance test.^[7]

Patients who did not fulfill these criteria were not permitted to participate in the study. Also, informed consent was obtained from the participants and their family members. In the first phase, the questionnaire-based literature review and reference were developed using the google form application to obtain information from experts about recurrence risk factors. These questionnaires were sent by email and contained: 1) Instructions of the research background, time returned, contact information, and acknowledgment, and 2) The suggestion from experts about “risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers”. Moreover, this phase took place between February 15 and March 25, 2020. Based on input from experts, the questionnaires in the second phase were also developed through the google form application. These experts were obtained using previously identified variables to collect risk factors associated with recurrence. Furthermore, this instrument was structured similarly to phase one, where the risk factors’ evaluation form on diabetic foot ulcer recurrence was the only difference, with a score ranging from 1-4 (1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, 4=strongly agree). All questionnaires were sent via email and between August 31 and September 28, 2020. Subsequently, two patients were used as raters to investigate the reliability agreement in a clinical setting. The questionnaires from the variable risk factors of recurrence in the second phase yielded a mean authority coefficient of 0.71. These variables included: 1) feet check, 2) knowledge, 3) diet pattern, 4) activity pattern, 5) foot care, 6) DM duration, 7) blood sugar value, 8) neuropathy status, 9) monofilament test check, 10) ankle-brachial pressure index examination, 11) ultrasonography assessment, 12) skin temperature, and 13) previous amputation. The questionnaire scoring included: 1=strongly disagree, 2=disagree, 3=agree, and 4=strongly agree. Moreover, data analysis was conducted with the IBM SPSS software (version 26.0., IBM Corp., Armonk, NY, USA). Each item was

described using descriptive statistics, such as mean and standard deviation, while the Delphi method's reliability and validity were examined using expert opinion consensus and calculation of the positive predicative value. The authority coefficients (Cr) were determined by two factors, namely the familiarity with the field (Cs) and criteria (Ca). Consequently, Cs used a value between 0.0-0.9^[8] to determine the five degrees of familiarity, namely very, more, generally, less, and not familiar.^[9] The terms "practical experience (0.5, 0.4, and 0.3)," "theoretical analysis (0.3, 0.2 and 0.1)," "domestic and foreign references" (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) and "subjective judgement (0.1, 0.1 and 0.1) were used to divide Ca into more, medium and less. In addition, the degree of expert authority was expressed by $Cr:Cr = (Ca + Cs) / 2$ while coordination was altered based on the variable and coordination coefficients.^[8] The Kendall's concordance coefficient was also used to reflect the coordination level of experts' opinion with a value between 0 and 1, where a higher denomination indicates a better coordination. Furthermore, Cohen's Kappa was used to analyse the patient's inter-rater reliability agreement. The level of significance was set at $p < 0.05$.

Ethical considerations

This study was approved by the Ethics Review Committee of STIK Muhammadiyah Pontianak, West Kalimantan Province (Ethical Approval Number: 62/II.I.AU/KET.ETIK/II/2020, and Date: February 2nd, 2020). Also, participation was voluntary, anonymous, and confidential. All participants received the consent document through the google form application and were requested to respond with a fill and return, indicating their readiness to participate in the study.

Results

In this study, the mean age of experts and total working time was 39.4 ± 1.4 and 10.9 ± 1.6 years, respectively, with five having worked for >10 years. Furthermore, among these experts one had a Ph.D. in medical surgery, three had a doctorate, two had a masters, and three possessed a bachelor's degree. Five of these individuals were from the wound clinic in West Kalimantan, two from the Middle Java's wound clinic, and one each from the wound clinics in Jakarta, Aceh, West Sulawesi and, East Kalimantan. The mean working time and age of the second Delphi experts were 11.2 ± 1.7 and 39.2 ± 1.5 years, respectively. Also, one expert had a surgeon's medical doctorate, three had a doctorate, while two and five had a master's and bachelor's degree. The positive coefficient was 100% (14 experts) in the first phase and 78% in the second. Table 1 shows that the mean authority coefficient in the second phase was 0.71 while Table 2 illustrates the mean variable coefficient was 0.41. Subsequently, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was 0.177 ($X^2=25.359$, $df=13$, $p=0.02$) with a perfect inter-rater reliability agreement of 1.00.

Discussion

This is the first study that aims to investigate the risk factors associated with recurrence using expert's opinion and their experience. Moreover, recurrence patients were used as participants, with different variables between the first and second phases, as indicated by the experts based on their experiences. The variables were also consistent with the patient's opinions. Experts with a bachelor's or higher degree and >10 years working experience in a hospital or clinic were questioned. These individuals were familiar with the study content and had in-depth knowledge of diabetic foot ulcers. The representation of experts was acceptable and the participants included diabetes patients.

Reliability

First, positive coefficients indicated that experts were interested and optimistic about the study, with a high positive response rate of 60% or above.^[10] Second, the literature demonstrated that these individuals could be considered of high authority if a coefficient > 0.7 was obtained. Third, the variable coefficient mean had a high concentration of expert suggestions. These retained literature suggestion items should have a score >3.5. (11) Finally, the coordination coefficient in the second phase was consistent, hence choosing appropriate experts was the key to a successful Delphi method.^[11]

Recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors

Our study demonstrated that there some recurrent diabetic foot ulcers risk factors including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

Neuropathy status, blood sugar and previous amputation were risk factor of recurrent diabetic foot ulcer. Thus, similarly with previous study.^{[6],[12]} A previous study reported that the duration of diabetes increased with the risk of diabetic foot ulcer recurrence.^[6] Education about pre-ulcerative signs and foot care play an important role in the prevention of diabetic foot ulcers.^[13] Screening such as monofilament test ABPI and ultrasound are important to early detection peripheral arterial ischemia in diabetic foot ulcer.^[13] Checking skin temperature, which is a feasible procedure, aids the prevention of recurrence.^[14] The last variables are activity and dietary pattern. The American Diabetes Association recommended physical activity and management of food on diabetes to prevent complication particularly diabetic foot ulcer.^[15]

Generally, all variables were consistent with previous studies. hence, they can be used to investigate risk factors associated with the recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers by health care professional (clinicians, nurses and others). However, the current study has limitation. Participant in inter-rater reliability agreement test was relatively small. Thus, generalizability may be limited.

Implication for clinical settings

The recurrence of diabetic foot ulcers was related to several risk factors, which could be prevented by involving the patients and their families. Consequently, the patient's quality of life is improved.

Conclusion

This study demonstrated that there are several risk factors associated with recurrent diabetic foot ulcers including neuropathy status, blood sugar, previous amputation, monofilament test, ankle brachial-pressure index (ABPI), foot care, duration of diabetes, activity and dietary pattern, wound healing knowledge, skin temperature, and assessment using ultrasonography.

These variables could serve as guidelines to prevent recurrence in the future that will improve quality of nursing of diabetic foot ulcer patients.

Future research is needed to evaluate these risk factors to recurrent diabetic foot ulcers patients with larger sample in clinical setting.

References

1. Federation International Diabetes. IDF Diabetes Atlas. Tenth. 2021.
2. Zhang P, Lu J, Jing Y, et al. Global epidemiology of diabetic foot ulceration: a

systematic review and meta-analysis†. *Ann Med*. 2017 Feb 17;49(2):106–16.

3. Soewondo P, Ferrario A, Tahapary D. Challenges in diabetes management in Indonesia: a literature review. *Global Health*. 2013;9(1):63.
4. Moxey PW, Gogalniceanu P, Hinchliffe RJ, Loftus IM, Jones KJ, Thompson MM, et al. Lower extremity amputations - a review of global variability in incidence. *Diabet Med*. 2011;28(10):1144–53.
5. Aru W. Sudoyo. dkk. *Buku Ajar Ilmu Penyakit Dalam Jilid III Edisi VI. Ilmu Penyakit Dalam*. 2014.
6. Khalifa WA. Risk factors for diabetic foot ulcer recurrence: a prospective 2-years follow-up study in Egypt . *Foot*. 2017;
7. Goyal A, Gupta Y, Singla R, Kalra S, Tandon N. American Diabetes Association “ Standards of Medical Care — 2020 for Gestational Diabetes Mellitus ”: A Critical Appraisal. *Diabetes Ther*. 2020;11(8):1639–44.
8. Liu Y, Liu HP. Establishing nursing adverse events’ reporting content of hospital: Using the Delphi method. *Front Nurs*. 2021;7(4):337–44.
9. Geng Y, Zhao L, Wang Y, Jiang Y, Meng K, Zheng D. Competency model for dentists in China: Results of a Delphi study. *PLoS One*. 2018;13(3).
10. Fincham JE. Response rates and responsiveness for surveys, standards, and the Journal. *Am J Pharm Educ*. 2008;72(2):43.
11. *Medicine C on Q of HC in AI of. Crossing the Quality Chasm A New Health System for the 21st Century*. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press; 2001. 360 pages.
12. Yazdanpanah L, Shahbazian H, Nazari I, Arti HR, Ahmadi F, Mohammadianinejad SE, et al. Incidence and Risk Factors of Diabetic Foot Ulcer : A Population-Based Diabetic Foot Cohort (ADFC Study) — Two-Year

Follow-Up Study. Int J Endocrinol. 2018;2018:1–9.

13. Nicolaas C, Schaper, Jaap J. van Netten, Jan Apelqvist, Sicco A. Bus, Robert J. Hinchliffe BAL. IWGDF Guidelines on the prevention and management of diabetic foot disease IWGDF Guidelines. 2019.
14. Skafjeld A, Iversen MM, Holme I, Ribu L, Hvaal K, Kilhovd BK. A pilot study testing the feasibility of skin temperature monitoring to reduce recurrent foot ulcers in patients with diabetes – a randomized controlled trial. BMC Endocr Disord. 2015;15(55):1–7.
15. Colberg SR, Sigal RJ, Yardley JE, Riddell MC, Dunstan DW, Dempsey PC, et al. Physical Activity / Exercise and Diabetes : A Position Statement of the American Diabetes Association. Diabetes Care. 2016;39(November):2065–79.

Table 1: Coefficient expert of authority of variables

Variables	Ca	Cs	Cr
Check feet every day	0.58	0.87	0.72
Check using monofilament test	0.57	0.85	0.71
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	0.60	0.85	0.72
Check using ultrasonography	0.55	0.85	0.70
Amputation previous	0.62	0.82	0.72
Knowledge wound healing	0.62	0.85	0.73
Diet pattern	0.61	0.81	0.71
Activity pattern	0.61	0.77	0.69
Footcare	0.64	0.75	0.69
Duration of DM	0.63	0.79	0.71
Blood sugar	0.62	0.83	0.73
Neuropathy status	0.62	0.75	0.69
Skin temperature	0.61	0,84	0.73
Mean	0.61	0.82	0.71

DM; diabetes mellitus, Cr; authority coefficients'; familiarity with the field, Ca; criteria

Table 2. Coefficients and significance of variables

Variables	M+SD	CV
Check feet every day	7.0±4.0	0.57
Check using monofilament test	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ankle-brachial pressure index	8.0±3.0	0.38
Check ultrasonography	7.0±4.0	0.57
Knowledge wound healing	8.0±3.0	0.38
Diet pattern	7.0±4.0	0.57
Activity pattern	6.5±4.5	0.69
Footcare	7.5±3.5	0.47
Duration of DM	9.0±2.0	0.22
Blood sugar	9.0±2.0	0.22
Skin temperature	6.5±4.5	0.69
Amputation previous	7.5±3.5	0.47
Neuropathy status	9.0±2.0	0.22
Mean	7.8±3.1	0.41

M, mean, SD, standard deviation, CV, coefficient of variation

